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          1  DEPARTMENT OF HOMELESS SERVICES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Now we have

          3  the Department of Homeless Services, and that is our

          4  final agency for today. Then I understand that

          5  members of the public may have something to say and

          6  so we will stay here until everyone has had their

          7  say.

          8                 However, for anyone who follows the

          9  work of this Committee, we are making on average

         10  record-breaking time. It is only after 3:00 not

         11  after 7:00, which is about what we usually average.

         12  So, keep that in mind.

         13                 I understand we have a new

         14  Commissioner of the Department of Homeless Services,

         15  so we want to welcome him and all of the returning

         16  veterans.

         17                 Okay, we will hear from the

         18  Department of Homeless Services. The Committee,

         19  obviously which is the General Welfare Committee,

         20  which I chair, there are eight other members, we

         21  operate under a set of rules that we are comfortable

         22  with, every witness who appears before us, for

         23  example, whether an advocate, activist, Commissioner

         24  or otherwise, is sworn in. We often have activists

         25  and advocates come and make presentations first and
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          2  then the agency comes, and that is not to show any

          3  disrespect but we think it engenders a little bit

          4  more of a kind of interest level and questions are

          5  out there on the table, if you will. None of which

          6  applies today, these are Finance Committee hearings,

          7  budget hearings, we operate under their rules so in

          8  a moment you can begin. But I did want to mention

          9  that, because quickly, as soon as a week from today,

         10  I believe, on Monday the 22nd, we will have a

         11  hearing, a General Welfare Committee hearing, on

         12  DHS, at which time we are scheduled to have

         13  testimony on and hopefully move to approve the most

         14  recent amendment to the local law which establishes

         15  or which reestablished or continued the Department,

         16  albeit it in one structure, soon to be another, so

         17  that is coming up.

         18                 After that hearing, and absent this

         19  budget setting, there are issues we are always

         20  concerned about, most paramount among them is how we

         21  struggle with the need to provide services on an

         22  emergency short-term basis, what long-term solutions

         23  we offer and how much resources we put in each

         24  category, because there are two categories. So, for

         25  example, rental assistance programs and affordable
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          2  housing programs and the like, that is an area the

          3  Committee will want to talk to you about. Some of it

          4  may come up now but, you know, our substantive

          5  hearings. And also criteria. If there is an area

          6  where the concern is mounting is the criteria for

          7  acceptance or rejection of families particularly in

          8  terms of entry points into the system, and whether

          9  you have adequate alternatives or not and what that

         10  means, whether it is completely arbitrary, whether

         11  there is an effort to make it a little more

         12  standardized.

         13                 So, those are some of the issues that

         14  I think we will be looking at moving from here out,

         15  not again totally today, today we should try to

         16  focus, at least from our side of the table on some

         17  of the budgetary impacts.

         18                 Having said all of that, good luck.

         19  Welcome aboard to the Department of Homeless

         20  Services, and I know that if your tenure at DYCD is

         21  any indication, the agency is in for a tenure that

         22  will be both productive, responsible, and I better

         23  not say too many more nice things because then you

         24  may lose the job, but other than that I expect that

         25  it will work out well because you have been as the
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          2  DYCD Commissioner, from my observations, very far

          3  removed from the team, dedicated and effective and I

          4  am sure you will bring that to DHS, so welcome.

          5                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman, for the fullsome welcoming to this

          7  very, very challenging area in City government.

          8                 I have a prepared statement, but

          9  prior to my launching into that, and of course I

         10  will be very happy to answer any questions that I

         11  may have picked up in the four and a half, no I

         12  guess at this point it is six and a half hours I

         13  have been commissioner, so I am not quite a veteran

         14  yet but I am getting there.

         15                 To my left is Assistant Commissioner

         16  Steven Park. He is the actual budgetary expert of

         17  the agency, and I am accompanied by some of my staff

         18  who will undoubtedly tap me on the shoulder should I

         19  go too far astray.

         20                 However, let me launch into my

         21  prepared testimony.

         22                 Good afternoon. My name is Martin

         23  Oesterreich. I am was recently appointed by Mayor

         24  Giuliani as the Commissioner for the New York City

         25  Department of Homeless Services.
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          2                 By way of background, I have served

          3  25 years in City government, most recently as the

          4  Commissioner of the Department of Youth and

          5  Community Development, and I now look forward to

          6  this opportunity to lead DHS into the new

          7  millennium.

          8                 Prior to my tenure with DYCD I worked

          9  at the New York City Department of Employment, where

         10  I developed and managed a broad range of

         11  initiatives, ranging from business training to job

         12  placement for displaced workers.

         13                 I welcome the opportunity to appear

         14  before you to discuss DHS' Fiscal Year 2000

         15  preliminary budget, but first I would like to

         16  discuss several of the agency's accomplishments over

         17  the past six years.

         18                 Recognizing the expertise of the

         19  non-profit community, DHS has turned to non-profit

         20  organizations to operate most of the agency

         21  shelters.

         22                 Over the past six years, the

         23  Department has turned over 19 shelters, 14 adult and

         24  five family, to non-profit providers, and in Fiscal

         25  Year 2000, the agency plans to contract out one
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          2  additional family shelter and four adult shelters.

          3                 Non-profit organizations have helped

          4  DHS create a true continuum of care by providing a

          5  range of programs for homeless clients, including

          6  substance abuse, mental health and employment

          7  services. The agency has eliminated the use of

          8  cavernous armory drill floors for sheltering single

          9  adults in shelters today are much smaller and

         10  program oriented.

         11                 A change in philosophy also

         12  accompanied this programmatic shift. The agency has

         13  introduced the expectation of mutual responsibility

         14  through the development of independent living plans,

         15  which outline clients' plans for moving toward

         16  self-sufficiency.

         17                 As the Commissioner of DHS, I plan to

         18  use my experience with employment, education and job

         19  training, to further develop the agency's focus on

         20  independent living, and to enhance the availability

         21  of training to both DHS staff and providers.

         22                 In partnership with the non-profit

         23  providers, DHS also created new services such as

         24  borough-based outreach teams. Some scattered

         25  outreach services existed before the creation of the
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          2  agency, but in the past six years, DHS has

          3  established contracted outreach teams based in each

          4  of the five boroughs to reach some of the most

          5  service resistant clients, those primarily living in

          6  public places.

          7                 To supplement the outreach teams, DHS

          8  have also established a permanent funding source for

          9  drop-in centers Citywide to provide a safe haven for

         10  the street homeless to get psychiatric and medical

         11  care, food and other necessities and to serve as a

         12  transition for clients to enter the more structured

         13  programs.

         14                 Over the past year DHS implemented a

         15  performance incentive program to provide financial

         16  incentives and rewards to non-profit and

         17  directly-operated shelters, drop-in centers and

         18  outreach teams, demonstrating excellence in the

         19  placement of clients into long-term housing or

         20  rehabilitation services.

         21                 Working closely with the Department

         22  of Housing Preservation and Development and the

         23  Department of Mental Health, as well as state

         24  agencies and the federal government, DHS continues

         25  to make available significant housing resources for
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          2  homeless families and single adults.

          3                 Since 1994 DHS has placed over 19,000

          4  families and 4,000 single adults into subsidized

          5  housing. To supplement these efforts, DHS has

          6  actively lobbied for permanent housing, most

          7  recently in support of a second New York New York

          8  agreement.

          9                 Additionally, we have allocated $21

         10  million to expand the number of supportive SRO

         11  housing units.

         12                 Over the past three years, DHS has

         13  steadily improved its capital commitment plan

         14  performance. In Fiscal Year 1999, DHS achieved 102

         15  percent of its planned target of $18.5 million, and

         16  is well on its way to meeting or exceeding the

         17  Fiscal 1999 target of 13.1 million.

         18                 In recognition of DHS' improved

         19  performance, the Office of Management and Budget has

         20  allocated an additional $37 million to DHS'

         21  four-year plan. Including an additional $27 million

         22  for existing capacity replacement.

         23                 The Fiscal 2000 Preliminary Budget

         24  builds on the agency's programmatic successes and

         25  ensures that City shelters continue to be compliant
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          2  and safe.

          3                 The preliminary expense budget

          4  provides $393 million in operating expense, of which

          5  161 million are City funds, 142 million are state

          6  funds, and 90 million are federal funds.

          7                 The budget allocates $176 million for

          8  services to single adults, $182 million to services

          9  for families, and $34 million to support all our

         10  other services.

         11                 The Fiscal Year 2000 January Plan

         12  includes:

         13                 - increased SRO support subsidy

         14  funding that will allow us to fund an additional 384

         15  SRO units at eight sites, at which HPD has funded

         16  the capital renovations.

         17                 - restored funding for shelters for

         18  childless couples to meet the census needs for this

         19  population.

         20                 - and funding from the Mayor's Y2K

         21  office to ensure that DHS' homes and client tracking

         22  systems are Year 2000 compliant.

         23                 The DHS capital budget was increased

         24  in the preliminary budget by over $37 million for

         25  Fiscal Years 2000 to 2009. The increase will fund
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          2  approximately 50 new projects that will improve the

          3  safety and habitability of the City's shelters.

          4                 Currently the preliminary ten-year

          5  capital plan is at $141.9 million and the four-year

          6  plan at $81.9 million.

          7                 For the ten-year period, projects

          8  budgeted for homeless families total $38.6 million,

          9  and projects for single adults total $99.8 million.

         10                 Vehicle and equipment purchases are

         11  budgeted for an additional $3.5 million.

         12                 In order to manage all of these new

         13  projects, DHS has increased its staff by three, two

         14  project coordinators and one architect.

         15                 Another important program funded by

         16  Mayor Giuliani in this year's preliminary budget,

         17  but jeopardized by the State's inaction at this

         18  time, is the New York New York Agreement to house

         19  the mentally ill.

         20                 Since 1990 this program has enabled

         21  over 8,000 formerly homeless individuals with

         22  serious mental illnesses to move into supportive

         23  housing. By providing on-site social services in a

         24  clean and safe environment, New York New York

         25  housing enables tenants to manage their homelessness
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          2  and break the cycle of homelessness by becoming

          3  productive members of society.

          4                 With the first agreement completed,

          5  the City has included the $85 million in capital

          6  funding over the next five years for a second New

          7  York New York agreement. These funds should create

          8  1,000 new units of supportive SRO housing, 600 of

          9  whom will be set aside for homeless mentally ill

         10  individuals.

         11                 As it was previously, the success of

         12  the second agreement is contingent upon the state's

         13  willingness to be an equal partner. Unfortunately

         14  the state has made no commitment at this time.

         15                 As I have learned the value and

         16  accomplishment of the New York New York Program, I

         17  recognize the importance of continuing to build on

         18  the program's momentum.

         19                 DHS will continue to work in

         20  partnership with providers in the advocate community

         21  to secure full state commitment. In my previous

         22  capacities I enjoyed an excellent relationship with

         23  the advocate community and I look forward to this

         24  opportunity to achieve our mutual goals.

         25                 I will be happy to answer any
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          2  questions that you may ask.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

          4                 Let us cover some of the things that

          5  are being cut, because I think they are extremely

          6  problematic, and not covered by your presentation.

          7                 First and foremost, there are about

          8  100 social caseworkers at DHS, they are in reception

          9  centers, hotels, et cetera, they provide on-site

         10  social services and the like so that we are doing

         11  more than just simply warehousing people or actually

         12  assisting them in terms of their larger needs and

         13  also hopefully providing the kind of service,

         14  assistance and care that will help them on their way

         15  out of your system in a sense. That is one of the

         16  cuts. It is a little under a million dollars in City

         17  funds. I don't know whether you have been briefed on

         18  it, it is in the preliminary budget and I think it

         19  is an extremely problematic cut.

         20                 You know, what light can you shed on

         21  that? I understand you are over headcount but the

         22  fact of the matter is, these are very specific

         23  people doing very specific things. I don't think it

         24  is quite fungible, you know, in terms of, well, you

         25  take some here, you take some there. And it was also
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          2  something the Council felt very strongly about, so

          3  it is always disheartening to see the same battles

          4  having to be waged year in and year out.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PARK: The cut

          6  that you are referring to, it goes back to at

          7  adoption the City Council requested that 128 social

          8  service lines be placed into the budget.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PARK: And the

         11  cut that you see here represents 105 positions. We

         12  in this plan maintained nine additional hotel

         13  workers, and 14 workers for our hot line program.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PARK: So, the

         16  positions that comprise the 105 would be 47 for the

         17  reception centers, 20 for the hotels, six for the

         18  hot line and 32 for the rehousing operations.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         20                 I mean, I ask because we are

         21  committed to the service that these folks represent

         22  and it seems to me that if we are going to try to

         23  cooperatively work agency and Council for the

         24  continuation for, you know, the Department of

         25  Homeless Services, and emphasis on the word
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          2  services, that it just doesn't help anybody to

          3  continually go back to the same priority areas to

          4  have them cut that we have to go through a battle to

          5  get them back when we are talking about what they do

          6  being so valuable.

          7                 So, it is in the preliminary budget,

          8  if you have a chance to comment, Commissioner, on

          9  what should be changed before the executive budget

         10  goes out, you might want to look at that. We are

         11  certainly committed to changing it, you might want

         12  to look at it.

         13                 Now, there is a million dollars

         14  allocated, and that is all that survived from our

         15  go-it-alone budget to our agreed upon budget after

         16  six or eight months, a million dollars to support a

         17  temporary rent subsidy program. I cannot for the

         18  life of me understand the acting interim

         19  commissioner, whatever he was, for awhile there, and

         20  his resistance to that program. A rental assistance

         21  program is so much in the nature of the economics,

         22  the cost effective, you know, budgetary folks of the

         23  world rather than necessarily the traditional social

         24  service folks of the world, I mean you put up a few

         25  bucks, you keep a whole bunch of families from ever
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          2  entering the system by helping to pay down some of

          3  their rent through the subsidy program, and the

          4  numbers are incredible. I don't have them all in

          5  front of me, but how do you justify not using rental

          6  subsidy programs and/or even moving to expand them?

          7  It is a million dollar hit, but it is just so

          8  counterproductive that it is incredibly frustrating.

          9                 What light can you shed on that?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PARK: A big

         11  part of the issue here is the need for state and

         12  federal shares for the Rental Assistance Program,

         13  that has been one of the issues.

         14                 We currently have a small rental

         15  assistance program in Brooklyn operated by a

         16  not-for-profit and when we received the funding for

         17  this a couple of years ago, there was a problem

         18  because we didn't have a state match to the funding,

         19  and it is pretty much the policy that, you know,

         20  from a fiscal point of view that one needs federal

         21  and state participation for these types of programs.

         22                 The reason we were able to operate

         23  that program is they were able to get a match

         24  through federal HUD money.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. Well --
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PARK: So the

          3  issue is that we don't have matches.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Two questions.

          5  I am not so sure on some level why you absolutely

          6  have to have a match, but even assuming that, you

          7  know, from an economic and technical point of view

          8  you did. What have you done to get matching funds?

          9  Have you lobbied the State? Have you lobbied the

         10  feds? Have you identified potential sources of state

         11  or federal funding?

         12                 In other words, you can't have for a

         13  whole year the million that we put up and then kind

         14  of say at the end of the year, well, we don't have

         15  any partners so we are not going to do this when we

         16  all know how cost effective it is. You know, you

         17  can't lament not having it if you are not trying to

         18  get them, and I am not even sure there is any legal

         19  prohibition to spending the money we have, even

         20  though it helps less people, it is better than

         21  helping no people stay in their homes.

         22                 So, that is a problem, Commissioner,

         23  and you know, you have been in an agency that has

         24  several different levels of funding, including state

         25  money and federal pass-throughs. I mean, it is not
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          2  different here really. You know, I mean I think you

          3  have to look at that. That is a million dollars that

          4  we put up that is going to waste. It wasn't spent

          5  this year.

          6                 Sorry, you were going to say

          7  something.

          8                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Well, I was

          9  just going to point out that the adopted budget was

         10  relatively laid in the year so that if there had

         11  been any planning it probably would have come in

         12  very late.

         13                 We will look at that particular

         14  situation, and we will review what has happened or

         15  what has not happened on it and get back to you on

         16  that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. Do you

         18  have anything, though, you could tell us about the

         19  state or feds? Even the Finance person here? Is

         20  there anything you know historically, you know,

         21  recent history, about whether or not they are

         22  indicating any interest in this?

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No. I know

         24  we have talked about having this as a part of our

         25  legislative package, both to Albany and to
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          2  Washington.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

          4                 Well, the clock is ticking before the

          5  exec and before the Council does its thing and

          6  passes a budget, so I commend that one to you.

          7                 Next, the EARP bonus. I am not so

          8  sure I understand the rationale in the Preliminary

          9  budget which indicates we no longer need these bonus

         10  payments because landlords are sort of increasingly

         11  willing to rent homeless families and are getting

         12  market rate through either the benefit, the housing,

         13  the shelter allowance and/or accommodation of

         14  shelter allowance in section 8. My understanding is

         15  it is increasingly difficult to actually access the

         16  Section 8 program rather than easier, so I am not so

         17  sure why we make that calculation. I don't think any

         18  one program solves the problem, but I think EARP is

         19  part of the solution because you do get more

         20  landlords in there if they get a bonus. I am not so

         21  sure why at this point and time, you know,

         22  begrudging that expenditure of about a million

         23  dollars, which brings more landlords into the

         24  program to provide more housing to families. I mean,

         25  again, I don't usually -- you know, getting programs
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          2  to landlords isn't always top on my list but this is

          3  one that makes sense. They are doing a good thing if

          4  they house a homeless family.

          5                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: And we

          6  certainly appreciate that and we want to have that

          7  happen.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: What can you

          9  tell me about the rationale?

         10                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Well, I can

         11  give you some history. I think I have something of,

         12  a little bit of a handle on this particular issue

         13  because it struck me also that in a tight housing

         14  market that, you know, one would look for all the

         15  advantages that one could give.

         16                 If I understand correctly, this is a

         17  program that has been around for some while, 1995 it

         18  was actually that the EARP was cut in half, if I am

         19  not mistaken.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         21                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: And what

         22  happened was that there was an initial decrease in

         23  the utilization and of course an increase once

         24  again, so there is a sense that this is in fact a

         25  bit of a bonus, of payment to landlords. In times of
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          2  fiscal constraint, as has been enunciated by the

          3  Administration, this looks very much like it is a

          4  program that we probably can do without, and it has

          5  been put forward for elimination. Now, people may

          6  differ on this particular piece but this is what we

          7  have put forward.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Well, let me

          9  just tell you, I do think, you know, the last I read

         10  we are still in times of record surplus, so I am not

         11  so sure that this million dollars, that will be a

         12  third of the ones I bring up, and finally I will

         13  turn it to my colleague and pick up that in fact it

         14  makes as much sense as others think it makes to take

         15  that risk. It is not a lot of money for what amounts

         16  to some good housing.

         17                 Let me ask if the Council member has

         18  any questions?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:

         20  Congratulations, Commissioner.

         21                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Are you

         23  going to do both?

         24                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I tried

         25  last week and it doesn't work.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It doesn't

          3  work?

          4                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: We have

          6  these general questions where we are always

          7  concerned about them, about if in fact the tier II

          8  shelters are filled to capacity, are they?

          9                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No, we are

         10  a little bit below capacity at this point, although

         11  capacity is always an issue within the system as a

         12  whole. I know that we have already scheduled some

         13  meetings about increasing capacity, there are a

         14  number of things, a number of capacity issues that

         15  are on the table right now.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, what is

         17  the budgeted number of tier II units?

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I don't

         19  know.

         20                 Steven?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PARK: I have

         22  it. Give me one second. The number is 4,999.

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: You want

         24  Tier II only, correct?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PARK: I have
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          2  here the total for Tier IIs is 4,011.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And on an

          4  average day, how many of them are vacant?

          5                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH:

          6  Approximately one percent.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Last year's

          8  preliminary budget eliminated 380 family shelter

          9  beds at a savings of $10 million in gross funds, and

         10  that was based on declining family census. What we

         11  would like to know is what happened to those beds

         12  that were defunded, were they eliminated? And are

         13  they being used for other purposes? Are they empty?

         14  Where are they?

         15                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I believe

         16  they were permanently located in hotels, and as you

         17  know we have a strategy of trying to move away from

         18  that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Those Tier

         20  IIs were in hotels? We have this recording, so you

         21  have to identify yourself because it is a different

         22  voice.

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: This is

         24  Dennis Piervencente, Deputy Commissioner (phonetic)

         25  for Family Services.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PIERVENCENTE:

          3  Most of that capacity was hotel capacity.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Can you tell

          5  us your name.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PIERVENCENTE:

          7  Dennis Piervencente.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          9                 These were not Tier II units that

         10  were not in hotels?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PIERVENCENTE:

         12  Most of those were for hotels. There was just one

         13  Tier II unit that has been slated for discontinuance

         14  of use until starting in July, one in Staten Island.

         15                 But all of the capacity that was

         16  discontinued was hotel other than that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So was that

         18  all from one hotel? Were a lot of them from one

         19  hotel?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PIERVENCENTE:

         21  There were four different hotels that were

         22  discontinued.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Four

         24  different?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PIERVENCENTE:
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          2  Correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And what

          4  happened --

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PIERVENCENTE: One

          6  has been resumed since then, three had not been in

          7  use.

          8                 As we watch the numbers are we are

          9  concerned about the usage of needs capacity, we will

         10  be looking back into that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: HRA

         12  testified that they have 100 Tier II beds in the

         13  pipeline for domestic violence victims, that is

         14  totally separate from your operation?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PIERVENCENTE:

         16  Correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Go ahead,

         18  Commissioner. You were going to say something?

         19                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes, it is.

         20  It is totally separate from my operation.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And then

         22  last year we were told that a family had to apply I

         23  think an average of three times before they were

         24  admitted, you know, found eligible. And the

         25  preliminary MMR shows that almost twice as many
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          2  families were denied shelter in '98 than in '97. So,

          3  does that mean that the average homeless family is

          4  now having to apply more than three times?

          5                 Susan Viviat.

          6                 MS. VIVIAT: I don't know exactly

          7  which numbers your three times is based on, but

          8  about 80 percent of the families apply one or two

          9  times. Now, maybe a higher average, because there

         10  are a number of families that apply many more times

         11  than that and they tend to skew the average.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: The

         13  testimony of the Acting Commissioner last year was

         14  that they applied on an average of three times.

         15                 MS. VIVIAT: That may be. As I said --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: 3.2. To be

         17  exact, he said 3.2 times.

         18                 MS. VIVIAT: That could be. All I am

         19  saying is it may actually come out to exactly the

         20  same thing, but about 80 percent of the people apply

         21  once or twice. Which can be the same thing because

         22  if you have other families applying seven or eight

         23  times, it is not a perfect bell curve, I guess is

         24  the --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Now, the
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          2  MMR, the preliminary MMR shows, the Mayor's

          3  Management Report, shows that almost twice as many

          4  people who applied for emergency shelter in '98 than

          5  in '97 were denied.

          6                 MS. VIVIAT: Okay, I have to see if it

          7  is duplicated or unduplicated. Because if it is

          8  duplicated it may be that there is more people

          9  applying.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So what is

         11  the average number times a family --

         12                 MS. VIVIAT: I think it is about the

         13  same.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It is still

         15  about the same?

         16                 MS. VIVIAT: It is still about the

         17  same. Every time we have looked at it recently we

         18  still have this split where about 75 to 80 percent

         19  of the people are applying once or twice. It does

         20  make sense actually.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Do you

         22  think, or do you ever consider if there is any kind

         23  of a connection -- would you not have any of these

         24  families who are applying would not be applying

         25  using domestic violence as an excuse or they would
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          2  be, right? Some of these families could say they are

          3  victims of domestic violence, right?

          4                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: They may

          5  very well.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Right.

          7                 Now, the Police Department and the

          8  Police Commissioner testified that there is an

          9  increased number of domestic violence incidence and

         10  actually in homicides between partners, people who

         11  know each other, et cetera. Do you think there is

         12  any connection at all between people being forced to

         13  live doubled up some place and this rise?

         14                 Does anybody look at that? Have you

         15  guys looked at the fact that the Police Commissioner

         16  has announced, that he has a new initiative

         17  actually, or that they had a pilot program which

         18  they are expanding, a demonstration program?

         19                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes, which

         20  is a very successful program from its initial two

         21  precinct configuration to I think eight or ten. I

         22  attended the announcement, I am also a member of the

         23  Domestic Violence Commission, the commission set up

         24  to address domestic violence.

         25                 To go back to your original question,
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          2  no, we do not. I don't know what we capture, or how

          3  we capture information. My sense is that there are

          4  victims of domestic violence who are forced out of

          5  their living arrangements who appear on our

          6  doorstep, absolutely. They are generally most

          7  appropriately referred to HRA.

          8                 What our numbers show is that the

          9  people who come into our system, the percentage is

         10  approximately the same, has not gone up

         11  dramatically.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And what

         13  percentage is that?

         14                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: It's about

         15  17 percent, from what I have been informed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Do you

         17  consider domestic violence, if a family is living

         18  with another family and within that household

         19  someone is being battered?

         20                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Is that

         22  considered to be domestic violence?

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I would

         24  believe that is domestic violence, and that is

         25  probably a reason for a call to the police. Yes,
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          2  sure. I certainly believe that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Is he going

          4  to say something?

          5                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: You are not

          7  going to say anything?

          8                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I don't

          9  think he needs to, I think I have agreed with your

         10  statement.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It doesn't

         12  seem logical to me that if people -- what percentage

         13  of the people applying at an EAU are people who are

         14  living doubled up some place?

         15                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I don't

         16  have that information. We will try to get it for

         17  you. I don't know if it will capture that, but we

         18  will see what we can do to approximate it if we

         19  don't capture it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  But you

         21  must have that information. Don't you think that is

         22  basic information?

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: We may very

         24  well have that information.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I don't mean
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          2  to put you on the spot.

          3                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I don't

          4  have that information.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But I would

          6  urge you to get that information, and then that that

          7  is an area that we should examine more carefully.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 Are you going to ask about EAUs?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Yes, thank

         11  you.

         12                 Just while we are on the more

         13  budgetary issue of how many times families apply and

         14  what that ends up costing you and ultimately the

         15  system and all of us. I am just trying to do this

         16  calculation quickly. It cannot be, I don't see how

         17  it can be that 80 percent of the people get shelter

         18  on the first shot, get accepted -- sorry. Eighty

         19  percent of the people apply only once and 20 percent

         20  apply, you know, X number of times and it averages

         21  out to three --

         22                 MS. VIVIAT: Eighty percent apply once

         23  or twice, and it doesn't mean they all are eligible

         24  ultimately. That is the total picture.

         25                 If you are only looking at eligible
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          2  families, it may be a different number.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, look,

          4  let me suggest something to you, Commissioner. We

          5  don't have to do a lot of this now, but if you want

          6  to know how this agency and this Committee interacts

          7  on the negative side is when we end up trying to

          8  answer the question do you know what time it is by

          9  looking at your watch and saying yes, because that

         10  is technically the correct answer, and then you have

         11  to ask the second question, well, what time is it?

         12  So let me tell you, that is just for future use.

         13                 Everyone knows what we are talking

         14  about in common terms when we talk about applying.

         15  The people go to the EAU, they apply, maybe they get

         16  their ten days, they are deemed ineligible, they

         17  have to apply again, and it averages three, four

         18  times before they eventually are approved.

         19                 It spreads out the time and it slows

         20  up the in-coming number of families. Everyone knows

         21  that is what happens. And he testified and others

         22  have testified three, four times on average. You

         23  come and tell me, no, once or twice and they are

         24  done.

         25                 MS. VIVIAT: I didn't say they were
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          2  going to be found eligible. There are some families

          3  who apply once or twice and they are found

          4  ineligible and who do not come back.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That is

          6  meaningless to the real issue.

          7                 MS. VIVIAT: In my opinion it is not,

          8  because I think what you are finding is there is

          9  some people who come, those who don't really need

         10  housing, and that is the point. They don't need

         11  emergency housing. And they are found ineligible and

         12  they do not come back.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: But they are

         14  not in the universe we are talking about. Whether or

         15  not you rightfully deny them or not is another issue

         16  for another day. But they are not in the mix. We are

         17  talking about families who do go through it

         18  repeatedly and eventually are approved. It takes

         19  them three or four times. That is what we were

         20  always talking about. So, to skew it by saying 80

         21  percent only come once or twice, by the way they

         22  never get housing, they never get accepted, it

         23  doesn't help you to cloud up the issue.

         24                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH:  Why don't

         25  I take a look at those particular --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I am sorry,

          3  why are you leaving? Sit down, please.

          4                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No, no, I

          5  had asked her to step away. Why don't I take a look

          6  at those particular numbers --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Let me tell

          8  you what it does mean.

          9                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Surely.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: What I mean

         11  for budget, which is why I think we were both

         12  raising it.

         13                 If in fact almost twice as many

         14  families were denied in the last year than the prior

         15  year, it could mean that in fact they have

         16  alternatives and so on, that is what the

         17  Administration tends to advance. Others tend to

         18  advance to us that your criteria for denial are

         19  vague, arbitrary, capricious, somewhat misguided and

         20  that we need a little more objectivity. The opening

         21  point I made that said that is the issue we should

         22  all work on in the future.

         23                 Second, there is a certain question

         24  as to the costs involved, in terms of personnel, in

         25  terms of what you are doing up there at the intake
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          2  center, EAU, the new law which will change some of

          3  what goes on, and how that needs to be reflected or

          4  not in the budget. Whether there is an area where

          5  you could look at it and say well, gee, if I had

          6  personnel laid out a little differently, assigned a

          7  little differently, you know, the whole process may

          8  work quicker, again, the positive or negative

          9  answer, not making a valued judgment on it, but just

         10  that it may save us all some money and some time in

         11  the longrun. That is the budgetary implication.

         12                 The policy implication we will cover

         13  at a hearing, which is what the standards are, what

         14  does it mean to have adequate alternatives, other

         15  housing, the Council member brought some of the open

         16  questions up. What does it mean when someone gets

         17  turned down because they are told, no, you have

         18  somewhere to live, what do they have, where do they

         19  have it - that is a different issue.

         20                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I just want

         21  to go back to something.

         22                 My understanding, I am not familiar

         23  with the step-by-step process engaged in by EAU when

         24  they review the housing needs, or the housing claims

         25  for people who appear on their doorsteps. I do have
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          2  to say, though, that if you look at the end result,

          3  you look at the people who are taken all the way

          4  into an appeal process --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

          6                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: That the

          7  decisions made by the people who were actually

          8  examining each particular family as it has appealed

          9  are sustained in the main.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         11                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: At a very

         12  high rate.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         14                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: And that

         15  would tend to indicate to me that we have people

         16  there who are very, very concerned about making the

         17  right decision and are in fact in the main making

         18  the right decision.

         19                 On the costing out situation that you

         20  referred to, I know that that is a process we are

         21  engaging in right now to try to figure out exactly

         22  what it means.

         23                 We will be putting forward and we

         24  have put forward some preliminary numbers for the

         25  Office of Management and Budget, and I am sure it is
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          2  going to be included and discussed more fully with

          3  the Council leadership, including yourself. So that

          4  process is also being engaged in.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Fine. As I

          6  said, we can leave for another day the efficacy of

          7  the program and the decisions and the standards. The

          8  testimony from the Acting Commissioner along the way

          9  is pretty clear. The average family had to apply for

         10  shelter approximately three, 3.2 times before they

         11  are found eligible. And that is the universe we were

         12  always talking about. And if they are ultimately

         13  found eligible anyway, then maybe there is something

         14  to be said for the cost and the distribution of

         15  personnel and the like.

         16                 Families that are never found

         17  eligible are irrelevant to the issue.

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Well, I am

         19  sorry, Chairman, they are not irrelevant.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: To this one

         21  issue. I don't mean any family is irrelevant.

         22                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Okay. I

         23  didn't think that that was the position that you

         24  would ever put forward.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No, absolutely
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          2  not. Very, very much not the case.

          3                 In any event, actually I think that

          4  is it for today. We, as you know, are greatly

          5  concerned with the future of the Department of

          6  Homeless Services. We know a little bit about the

          7  operational aspects of the agency and what current

          8  law requires and what the proposed amendments would

          9  require. It took a long time for us to all get

         10  there, but hopefully after the 22nd we can all work

         11  cooperatively to move forward with these, you know,

         12  with the services we do provide.

         13                 And, again, I appreciate your time

         14  and welcome to your new role.

         15                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chairman. Thank you, members of the Committee.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That ends this

         18  section of the hearing.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 4:15 p.m.)
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